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5,484 4,701 2,852 2,461
2,632 2,240
(HHI )
2017 2018 2017 2018
30 30 30 30
61 44 3,718 3,303
6,231 6,050
225 190
10 18 269 313
6,527 6,302 3,987 3,616
2,540 2,686
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30 30 30 30
6,930 6,527
5,526 5,148
31 27
12,487 11,702 12,487 11,702
5,557 5,175
48
2017 10 2027 30 45
2017 2018 30
469 691
( )
30
2017 2018
/( ):
(37,070) (36,180)
1,641,787 929,784
(1,823,834) (673,866)
/( (219,117) 219,738
)
2017 30 1,642
22
1,824 1,799
2018 30 930
18
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2018 30
« - )
C - )
( )
@
€H)
(©)
( )
691
2018 30 ( ) 99.9
(2017 30 99.8 ) 0.1 (2017 30 0.2 )
263 (2017 30
440 )
2018 30
( ) 691 (2017 30 469

) 0.22 (2017 30 0.15 )
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351
2018 30
5,259
(a) 99.8 (2017
(b) 77 (2017
30
(
2018 30
O)
(i)
Gii)
(iv)
2003
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2003
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2011
2016
20
912
(1,103
4,034
(2017 30 6,007 )
30 99.9 ) 0.2 (2017
30 77 ) 21 (2017 30
)
)
2003 23
4,500,000,000
2003 25
2003 31
25
25
2003 25
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(vii) 2003 25
(
)

(viii) HHI

2004 2004
(ix) HHI

14
(viii) 2004

) HHI

(viii) 2004

(xi) HHI
HH1
HHI
(xii) HHI
(viii) 2004
(xiii)HHI
(xiv) HHI
(viii) 2004
(xv) HHI
18

(viii) 2004
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(€Y
(2018 30 )
10,000,000, 000 3,081,690,283 6,918,309,717
(2018 30 )
( 0.10 3,081,690,283
3,081,690,283
@
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(D)

(D)

)

120,000,000

3,081,690,283

12,000,000

169,080,000

308,169,028.

4,342,101,609

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,342,101,609

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,342,101,609

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,342,101,609

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,342,101,609

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,342,101,609

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,342,101,609

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,342,101,609

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,342,101,609

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,342,101,609

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,342,101,609

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,342,101,609

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,342,101,609

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,342,101,609

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,342,101,609

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,342,101,609

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,342,101,609

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,342,101,609

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,342,101,609

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,342,101,609

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,342,101,609

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,342,101,609

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,342,101,609

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,342,101,609

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,342,101,609

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,342,101,609

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,342,101,609

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,342,101,609

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,342,101,609

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,342,101,609

®
2012 10 31
2013 31
2013 31
2013 30
2013 10 31
2013 11 30
2013 12 31
2014 31
2014 28
2014 31
2014 30
2014 31
2014 30
2014 31
2014 31
2014 30
2014 10 31
2014 11 30
2014 12 31
2015 31
2015 28
2015 31
2015 30
2015 31
2015 30
2015 31
2015 31
2015 30
2015 10 31
2015 11 30
2015 12 31

3,081,690,283

308,169,028.

4,342,101,609
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(D) )
2016 31 -] 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,342,101,609
2016 29 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,342,101,609
2016 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,342,101,609
2016 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,342,101,609
2016 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,342,101,609
2016 30 -] 3,081,690,283 - - | 308,169,028.30 4,342,101,609
2016 31 -] 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,342,101,609
2016 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,342,101,609
2016 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,342,101,609
2016 10 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,342,101,609
2016 11 30 - | 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,342,101,609
2016 12 31 -] 3,081,690,283 - - | 308,169,028.30 4,342,101,609
2017 31 -] 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,342,101,609
2017 28 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,342,101,609
2017 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,342,101,609
2017 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,342,101,609
2017 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,342,101,609
2017 30 -] 3,081,690,283 - - | 308,169,028.30 4,342,101,609
2017 31 -] 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,342,101,609
2017 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,342,101,609
2017 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,342,101,609
2017 10 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,342,101,609
2017 11 30 - | 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,342,101,609
2017 12 31 -] 3,081,690,283 - - | 308,169,028.30 4,342,101,609
2018 31 -] 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,342,101,609
2018 28 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,342,101,609
2018 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,342,101,609
2018 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,342,101,609
2018 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,342,101,609
2018 30 -] 3,081,690,283 - - | 308,169,028.30 4,342,101,609
(1)120,000,000 ( )
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)
(2018 30
() 0 Q)
95 3,057,381,285 99.21
6,429 24,308,998 0.79
6,524 3,081,690,283 100.00
®)
(2018 30 )
)
)
V61110
" 2,809,744,415 91.18
1

A 2,809,744,415 91.18

(¢H)
2,809,744,415 91.18

10) 18
HKSCC

100 242,498,884 7.87
3,052,243,299 99.05

(€D)

( SHICHIC )
SIICHIC
( SIICHCL ) 100 SFO
15 SIICHCL  SIICHIC
(2)SIICHCL ( SIHC
) 100 SIHC SIICHCL SFO 15
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2018 30
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2018
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1.17154
100
2018 10 30 2018
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1.14583
(

))

(
20.2

1.11560
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¢
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
30 30 30 30 30
4.15 4.09 3.90 4.85 4.78
() 58 58 55 68 67
3.52 3.76 3.42 3.83 4.78
() 50 53 48 54 67
2003
@)
2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018
4.86 4.79 4.79 4.80 4.78 4.78
() 68 67 67 68 67 67
4.77 4.73 4.72 4.77 4.78 4.78
() 67 67 67 67 67 67
2003
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( )
(48 )(1970 5 )
( )
1992 (
MBA 2002
2005
2009
(
2017
(55 ) (1963 9 )
( )
1985
2001
(
1993 CPC
(
)
( )
2004 11
2014
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48 )(1970 )
2018 11 ( )
1995 (
( ) 1997 10
(
)
( )
(
42 )(1975 )
2018 11 (
2004
1998
)
( ) 2006
2014
( )

Trade Arbitration Commission)

( 548(H )
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(South China International Economic and
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Public Accountants)
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9 )

25
1992 2006
(Hong Kong Institute of Certified
(Association of Chartered Certified Accountants)
(American Institute of Certified Public Accountants)

(Hopson Development Holdings

Limited)( 754) (Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited)(
1047) ( )
(Termbray Industries International (Holdings) Limited)( 93)
2016 28
(PanAsialum Holdings Company Limited)( 2078)
(IP)(43 )(1974 11 10 )
2011 2015
26 (
BEA ) 2004 2009 BEA
2009
2014 BEA

(Towngas China Company Limited)

(China Overseas Land & Investment Limited)

12

(Traffic Accident Victims Assistance Advisory Committee)

Development Council)

(Financial Services

(Hong Kong - Europe Business Council)

(Hong Kong - Taiwan Business Co-operation Committee) 2018

and Wales)( 1CAEW

(the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
)

(Authority of Qianhai Shenzhen-Hong Kong Modern Service Industry Cooperation Zone of Shenzhen)
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(the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants)

(the Treasury Markets Association)

MBA

(SBS, JP)(67 )(1950 12
2018 11

Notaries)

Kong)

England and Wales)
Capital Territory)
Republic of Singapore)

Committee) 1985 2011
1999
1997
1988 (Heung Yee Kuk)
( (Town Planning Board)
Committee) )
(Man Wah Holdings Limited)( 1999)
2016 29
1982) 2016
(
(Midland Holdings Limited)( 1200)
2016 10
1C&l (Midland 1C&I Limited)(
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(Tony Kan & Co., Solicitors &
(Supreme Court of Hong

(Supreme Court of

(Supreme Court of the Australian

(Supreme Court of the

(Guangdong

(Sha Tin District Council)

(Regional Council)

(Housing Authority) (Building

(Election Committee)

2013
(Nameson Holdings Limited)(
12

1994 10 2004
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2016 11
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(41 )(1977 )
2018 27 1999
2008 2001

( )( )

( A000002)

( 2202)
( )

( )

(35 )(1983 12 23 )
2018 12 2006 e
2013

2016 10
(Taiping Investment Holdings Company Limited)

0CT

( )

(Taiping Financial Tower projects)
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20,226,000
30

485 )
30,000

EDINETOOOO

O000oO00ooooooO000O00o0o00bDboO00noOO(Ees933)

30

15,359,000

838,000 (2017

85/209

)
10,193,000
MPF
799,000 )

oOoOooodn

MPF



EDINETOOOO
O000oO00ooooooO000O00o0o00bDboO00noOO(Ees933)
oOoOooodn

) 2013 10 22 (
) 2023 10 21
®
® (
)
/
(
)
10 12
308,169,028 ( 10
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Q) (i) (iii)

27

2018 11

90/209



EDINETOOOO
O000oO00ooooooO000O00o0o00bDboO00noOO(Ees933)
oOoOooodn

2017 30 2017 12 31

91/209



EDINETOOOO
O000oO00ooooooO000O00o0o00bDboO00noOO(Ees933)
oOoOooodn

2018 11
2018 11

2018 30

2018 2017

92/209



EDINETOOOO
O000oO00ooooooO000O00o0o00bDboO00noOO(Ees933)
oOoOooodn

2017 2018 2017
/
O 2017
F1cE) (Kewe N/A N/A
N/A N/A
P) N/A N/A
N/A N/A

(GBS JP PhD DSc)

@P)
N/A N/A
2018 11
2018
2018 11 2018 30
/
()
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
P
(SBS JP)
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(Companies Registry of Hong Kong) (Guide on Directors’ Duties) /
( ) (Guide for

Independent Non-Executive Directors)

(@] (@] (@]
(2018 27 ) © © ©

(@] (@]

pP)
(SBS JP) o o
/
( )
15
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68 ()
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183
21
(

ir@hopewel Thighway.com
(852) 2863 2502
(852) 2861 0177
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68
116 @
)
( )
13.51(2)
@

( C DI (GEED) N N ¢ (GIED) N I ¢ (D))
1,036(17,260) 340(5,664) 987(16,443) 335(5,581)
0 0
368(6,131) © 350(5,831) ©
1,404(23,391) 340(5, 664) 1,337(22,274) 335(5,581)
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32 12 )
193
3
134 2018 30 UFJ
2018 6 30
2018 29 UFJ
16.66
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2018 30
2017 2018

29,060 484 17,983 300

(190) 3) (108) )

(40,578) (676) (34,404) (573)

(19) () (41) (€))

680,353 11,334 724,433 12,069

668,626 11,139 707,863 11,793

(37,033) (617) (41,835) (697)

631,593 10,522 666,028 11,096

7,793 130 (7,281) (121)

639,386 10,652 658, 747 10,975

622,671 10,374 656,197 10,932

8,922 148 9,831 164

631,593 10,522 666,028 11,096

630,464 10,503 648,916 10,811

8,922 149 9,831 164

639,386 10,652 658,747 10,975

12

0.2021 3.37 0.2129 3.55
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2018 30
2017 2018
14 5,171,922 86,164 4,851,836 80,832
15 4,785 80 4,785 80
16 283 5 84 1
5,176,990 86,249 4,856,705 80,913
941 16 1,569 26
17 1,662 28 75,849 1,263
18 469,067 7,814 691,461 11,520
471,670 7,858 768,879 12,809
5,648,660 94,107 5,625,584 93,722
19 270,603 4,508 270,603 4,508
5,255,732 87,561 4,877,469 81,259
5,526,335 92,069 5,148,072 85,767
30,826 513 27,219 453
5,557,161 92,582 5,175,291 86,220
21 80,215 1,337 69,310 1,155
11,284 188 10,027 167
— — 370,956 6,180
11,284 188 380,983 6,347
91,499 1,525 450,293 7,502
5,648,660 94,107 5,625,584 93,722
469,067 7,814 691,461 11,520
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3
2018 30
( )
2016 270,603 4,646,724 114,710 (794,833) _ 2,435,416 6,672,620 46,554 6,719,174
7,793 7,793 7,793
622,671 622,671 8,922 631,593
7,793 622,671 630,464 8,922 639,386
11 (1,541, 965) 287,703 (522,487)  (1,776,749) (1,776,749)
(24,650) (24,650)
2017 30 270,603 3,104, 759 114,710 (499,337) _ 2,535,600 5,526,335 30,826 5,557,161
(7,281) (7,281) (7,281)
656,197 656,197 9,831 666,028
(7,281) 656,197 648,916 9,831 658, 747
(7,121) (7,121) (7,121)
1 (387,790) 80,724 (712,992)  (1,020,058) (1,020,058)
(13,438) (13,438)
2018 30 270,603 2,716,969 107,589 (425,894) 2,478,805 5,148,072 27,219 5,175,291
( )
2016 4,508 77,415 1,011 (13,242) 40,574 111,166 775 111,941
130 130 130
10,374 10,374 149 10,523
130 10,374 10,504 149 10,653
11 (25,689) 4,793 (8,705) (29,601) (29,601)
(411) (411)
2017 30 4,508 51,726 1,911 (8,319) 42,243 92,069 513 92,562
(121) (121) (121)
10,932 10,932 164 11,096
(121) 10,932 10,811 164 10,975
(119) (119) (119)
1 (6,461) 1,345 (11,878) (16,994) (16,994)
(224) (224)
2018 30 4,508 45,265 1,792 (7,095) 41,297 85,767 453 86,220
2009 30
2017 30 0.10 2017 2016 30
0.40 307,066,000 2017 1,254,262,000
387,790,000 2017 1,541,965,000
80,724,000 2017 287,703,000
48 2017 10 2027 30
45
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2018 30
2017 2018
668,626 11,139 707,863 11,793
(600) (10)
(23,539) (392) (18,504) (308)
(128) )
(5.521) 92) 1,389 23
190 3 108 2
(680, 353) (11,335) (724,433) (12,069)
(40,597) (677) (34,305) (571)
(250) 1) (628) 1)
) ©) 10 0
3,786 63 (1,257) (21)
(37,070) (618) (36,180) (603)
(100) @
319 5
1,619,433 26,980 911,124 15,179
22,361 372 18,441 307
() ©
1,641,787 27,352 929,784 15,490
(1,799,184) (29,974) (660,428) (11,002)
(24,650) (411) (13,438) (224)
(1,823,834) (30, 385) (673,866) (11,226)
(219,117) (3,651) 219,738 3,661
652,435 10,870 469,067 7,815
35,749 596 2,656 44
469,067 7,815 691,461 11,520
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1.
2018
HHL )
2018
66.69
24 14
2. IFRS IFRS
IFRS
IFRS
IFRS 12 IFRS 2014 2016
1AS
IAS 12

IFRS

1AS
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27
27

IFRS IFRS
IFRS IFRS

IFRS IFRS 2015 2017
IFRS
IFRS IFRS IFRS
IFRS
IFRS
IFRS 10
IAS 28
IFRS 15
IFRS 16
IFRS 17
IFRIC 22
IFRIC 23
IAS 19
IAS 28
IAS 28 IFRS 2014 2016
IAS 40

2018
2019
2021

IFRS IFRS
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IFRS
IFRS
IFRS
IFRS
FVTOCI
IFRS
IFRS IAS 39
2018 30 IFRS
15
IFRS FVTOCI
IFRS
2018

IAS 39

IFRS
IFRS
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IFRS
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I1AS
IAS 36

IAS 36
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14
Q)
2018 30 4,851,836,000 2017  5,171,922,000
724,433,000 2017 680,353,000
618,494,000 2017 592,754,000
2017
12,228,000 2017 11,711,000
(i)
2018 30 4,851,836,000 2017 5,171,922,000
724,433,000 2017 680,353,000

207,590,000 2017 179,787,000
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Gii)
2018 30 22,034,000 2017
54,533,000
5.
EBITDA

IFRS
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2017

EBITDA

1,560,590 1,343,096 (460, 490) (324,108) 558,498
598,673 515,856 (210,161) (198,386) 107,309
2,159,263 1,858,952 (670,651) (522,494) 665,807
23,539

(40,768)
(19)
O

(16,959)

631,593
(8,922)

622,671

2018

EBITDA

1,498,636 1,308,583 (462,525) (324,885) 521,173
663,013 580,436 (229,783) (212,711) 137,942
2,161,649 1,889,019 (692,308) (537,596) 659,115
18,504

868

(34,512)

(41)

(60)

22,154

666,028
(9,831)

656,197

23,543,000 2017
22,480,000 1,389,000 2017 5,521,000
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EBITDA
/
EBITDA
i
/
ii
iii
2017 2018
665,807 659,115
(22,480) 23,543
37,026 41,775
680,353 724,433
( )
2017 2,015 723 2,738 (2,738) 23,539 23,539
2018 4,036 769 4,805 (4,805) 18,504 18,504
84,000 2017 283,000
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2017

EIT
21

30

25
25
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EIT
52,680,000 2017

21
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2017 2018
23,539 18,504
5,521 (1,389)
600
128
140
29,060 17,983
2017 2018
767,736 816,975
(87,383) (92,542)
(45,098) (47,912)
45,098 47,912
680,353 724,433
2017 2018
84,230 52,740
(47,197) (10,905)
37,033 41,835
84,223,000
2017 2018
668,626 707,863
167,157 176,966
an (90)
(7,242) (4,693)
10,197 8,985
(170,088) (181,108)
(47,197) (10,905)
84,223 52,680
37,033 41,835
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2017 2018
1,404 1,383
10 15,359 10,193
16,202 12,625
31,561 22,818
190 108
19 41
13 2017
( )
2017 2018
a
b 36 195 231
c 36 195 231
d 36 195 231
. 342 342 330 330
f 75 75
70 70
263 1,602 1,865 213 1,194 1,407
219 1,281 422 1,922 180 955 1,135
175 3,783 1,795 16 5,769 148 2,881 13 3,042
175 3,232 995 16 4,418 148 2,452 13 2,613
1 368 368 201 201
m 368 368 291 201
307 307 246 246
2,217 9,898 3,212 32 15,359 2,100 8,067 26 10,193
2018 11 2018 11
2018 30
2018 11
2018 11
2018 11
2018 11
2018 11
2018 11
2018 11 2018
2018 11 2018
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j. 2018 1 2018
k. 2018 11 2018
I. 2018 11 2018
m. 2018 11 2018
n. 2018
2017
2017
2017 2018
1,068 1,041
121 127
16 15
1.205 1.183
2017 30 2018 30
11.
2017 2018
2017 30
0.0860 9.59416 215,647
2017 30
0.1160 13.58986 2017 2016 30
0.0820 o casa 246,840 356,196
2017 30
0.1000 11.71540 2017 2016 30
0. 4000 57760 1,254,262 307,066
1,776,749 663,262
2018 30
0.1160 14.24028 356,796
2018 30
0.0970 11.114551 2017 2017 30
0.1160 [P 357,476 298,924
2018 30
0.1000 11.4583 2017 2017 30
o 00 308,169 308,169
11.71540
665,645 607,093
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2018
14.24028

0.0970

12.

13.

2018

2018
11.114551

30

30

30,000

2018
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30 0.1160
356,796,000 2018 30
0.1000 11.4583
2017 2018
622,671 656,197
2017 2018
3,081,690,283 3,081,690,283
MPF
18
MPF
838,000 2017 799,000
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14.
2017 2018
2,020,789 2,020,789
2,520,218 2,520,218
1,636,243 1,408,699
(358,032) (405,944)
(1,434,039) (1,526,581)
4,385,179 4,017,181
2,449,500 2,449,500
(2,020,789) (2,020,789)
358,032 405,944
786,743 834,655
5,171,922 4,851,836
2017 30 2018 30
( 50
4,899 ,00(2,000 50 50
()
1997 30
10 50 10
48 10 45
702,000,000 471,000,000

2008 30
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2017

30

1,680,000,000

294,000,000

2003

6,715,000,000

1,175,500,000

980,000,000

2018

5,600,000,000

30
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17

2010

2013
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30

35

25

35

25

50
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588,000,000

2,351,000,000
25

1,960,000,000
25

4,899,000,000
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IFRS
30 2018 30
)
2017 2018
433,569 449,184 400,152 380,621
8,141,371 12,388,255 7,384,044 12,026,226
8,574,940 12,837,439 7,784,196 12,406,847
740,085 122,764 436,463 88,212
50,000 50,000
42,577 20,457 53,335 35,774
832,662 143,221 539,798 123,986
(328,303) (88,988) (376,926)  (100,832)
(4,410,493)  (7,436,121) (3,991,043)  (6,593,121)
(297,249)  (139,976) (233,631)  (234,577)
(5,036,045) _(7,665,085) (4,601,600) _(6,928,530)
(357,857) (355,183) (13,000)
(158,742)
(4,032) (9,175) (4,813) (8,090)
(600,291)  (299,062) (518,447)  (281,503)
(962,180) __ (308,237) (1,037,185) __ (302,593)
3,409,377 _ 5,007,338 2,685,209 5,299,710
48 50 45 50
1,636,501 2,503,669 4,140,170 1,208,344 2,649,855 3,858,199
(54,427) (54,427)
1,582,074 2,503,669 4,085,743 1,208,344 2,649,855 3,858,199
1,049,040 37,139 1,086,179 957,080 36,557 993,637
2,631,114 2,540,808 5,171,922 2,165,424 2,686,412 4,851,836
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(i)
15.
16.
2016
/
2017 30
/
2018 30
2016
/
2017 30
/
2018 30
2017 30
2018 30

~

N
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)
2017 2018

3,251,230 1,197,346 3,330,301 1,326,026
119,080 12,893 60,718 16,286
3,370,310 1,210,239 3,391,019 1,342,312
(119,080) (12,893) (60,718) (16,286)
12,697 38,195 123,253 40,461
(66,465) (9,833) (48,623) (11,844)
(373,643)  (147,751) (348,912)  (142,343)
(88,148) (46,245) (78,298) (51,428)
(778,377)  (419,292) (823,478)  (458,402)
(130,315)  (359,109) (155,378)  (313,030)
(456,989) (33,030) (508,223) (97,069)
1,369,990 220,281 1,490,642 292,371
48% 50% 45% 50%

657,595 110,141 767,736 670,789 146,186 816,975

52,318,000 2017 46,834,000

873 4,638 5,511

(20) (20)

873 4,618 5,491

100 100

(536) 27) (663)

337 4,591 4,928

518 4,520 5,038

127 63 190

20 20)

645 4,563 5,208

38 70 108

(346) (126) “72)

337 4,507 4,844

228 55 283

84 84

129/209



17.

2018

18.

2018
2017

19.

0.1

2016

2016
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2017 2018
72.134
1,652 1.715
10
1.662 75.849
1,037,398,000 2017 1,684,456,000
0.01 10.00
2017 2018
468,100 690,548
860 908
17 5
469,067 691,461
30 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
30 3,081,690,283 308,169 270,603
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2013 10 22
10 i
ii

(iiid)

iv

)
2007 25
2007 25 15
HHI
2007 25
12
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2017 2018
2,470,059 1,570,678
1,435,903 1,609,532
3,905,962 3,180,210
252 189
1,652 1,715
241,200 81,964
468,554 690,951
711,658 774,819
4,617,620 3,955,029
270,603 270,603
3,521,842 3,003,730
3,792,445 3,274,333
4,746 2,980
370,956
820,429 306,760
825,175 680,696
4,617,620 3,955,029
468,554 690,951
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22
2018 30
3,439,749,000 2017  4,038,585,000 722,780,000
2017 933,826,000 2,716,969,000 2017 3,104,759,000
( )
2016 4,646,724 (804,446) 680,716 4,522,994
775,597 775,597
11 (1,541,965) 287,703 (522,487)  (1,776,749)
2017 30 3,104,759 (516,743) 933,826 3,521,842
501,946 501,946
11 (387,790) 80,724 (712,992)  (1,020,058)
2018 30 2,716,969 (436,019) 722,780 3,003,730
2009 30
2017 30 0.10 2017 2016 30
0.40 307,066,000 2017 1,254,262,000
387,790,000 2017 1,541,965,000
80,724,000 2017 287,703,000
21.
2016 127,412
37,026
(84,223)
2017 30 80,215
41,775
(52,680)
2018 30 69,310
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2017 2018
470,893 767,310
4,785 4,785
475,678 772,095
6,746 376,344
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2018

2017

2018

42,667,000
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2017 2018 2017 2018
17 5 . z
864 908 6,064 375,166
2018 30
30
18,713,000

30
30

2017 48,458,000
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2018 30

4,691,000

2018 30

49,910,000

(i)

2018 30
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18
18
100
100 2017 100
6,915,000 2017
100 2017 100
44,708,000 2017
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0000000
(iv)
©
24.
2017 30 2018
30
BVI 97.5 100
20,000
100
97.5
100
100
HHI 100 100
HHI
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25.
2017 2018
1,261 1,271
2017 2018
- 1,262
2018 30
2017 30
26.
2017 30 2018 30
27.
2017 .
(673,866)
1,033,496
11,326
2018 30 370,956
28.
2017 2018
1,101,000 2017
1,414,000 HHL HHL 2018

10
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29.

2018 30

434,028,000

30.

2008 30
702,000,000

31.

471,000,000

79

121
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253,593,000 2017

702,000,000

2018 27
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2018 30
2017 2018
2,159,263 35,973 2,462,407 2,161,649 36,013 2,600,727
63,605 1,060 73,273 35,466 591 41,957
2,222,868 37,033 2,535,680 2,197,115 36,604 2,642,684
) 76,801 1,279 87,778 117,633 1,960 142,056
(63,605) (1,060) (73,273) (35,466) (591) (41,957)
(36,820) (613) (42,019) (27,803) (463) (49,753)
(253,224) (4,219) (288,544) (228,182) (3.801) (259,294)
(106,011) (1,766) (120,814) (95,352) (1,589) (113,340)
(670,841) (11,176) (764,827) (692,416) (11,536) (833,088)
) (264,673) (4,409) (301,741) (250,432) (4,172) (301,454)
904,495 15,069 1,032,240 985,007 16,412 1,185,854
(272,902) (4,547) (311,617) (319,069) (5,316) (384,264)
631,593 10,522 720,623 666,028 11,096 801,590
622,671 10,374 710,451 656,197 10,932 789,752
8,922 148 10,172 9,831 164 11,838
631,593 10,522 720,623 666,028 11,096 801,590
O]
2017 2018
26,277 30,080 23,311 27,816
22,549 25,714 23,956 28,845
(24,453) (27,613) 30,001 36,739
26,941 30,706 20,174 24,333
25,487 28,891 20,191 24,323
76,801 87,778 117,633 142,056
(i)
2017 2018
241,414 275,217 225,746 271,730
22,549 25,714 23,956 28,845
550 627 551 663
264,513 301,558 250,253 301,238
160 183 179 216
264,673 301,741 250,432 301,454
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2018 30

2017 2018
432,935 7,213 498,741 371,923 6,196 439,985
11,101,501 184,951 12,788,929 10,324,590 172,007 12,213,990
393,372 6,553 453,164 417,328 6,953 493,698
4,785 80 5,513 4,785 80 5,661
11,932,593 108,797 13,746,347 11,118,626 185,236 13,153,334
1,115 19 1,285 731 12 865
1,611 27 1,855 2,210 37 2,614
35,966 599 41,433 41,994 700 49,679
2,700 45 3,194

434,191 7,233 500,188 253,563 4,224 299,965
469,067 7,815 540,365 691,461 11,520 817,998
6,431 107 7,409 9,451 157 11,181
948,381 15,800 _ 1,092,535 _ 1,002,110 16,695 _ 1,185,496
12,880,974 214,507 14,838,882 12,120,736 201,931 14,338,830
270,603 4,508 308,169 270,603 4,508 308,169
5,255,732 87,561 _ 6,058,169 _ 4,877,469 81,259 5,782,001
5,526,335 92,069 6,366,338 5,148,072 85,767 6,090,170
30,826 513 35,511 27,219 453 32,199
5,557,161 92,582 _ 6,401,849 _ 5,175,291 86,220 _ 6,122,369
5,834,763 97,207 6,721,647 5,092,566 84,842 6,024,505
393,322 6,553 453,106 417,277 6,952 493,639
179,787 2,995 207,115 207,590 3,458 245,579
248,998 4,148 286,846 259,820 4,329 307,367
39,409 657 45,400 38,175 636 45,161
6,696,279 111,560 _ 7,714,114 _ 6,015,428 100,217 7,116,251
387,056 6,448 445,889 343,097 5,716 405,884
370,956 6,180 438,841

171,771 2,862 197,880 166,333 2,771 196,771
6,523 109 7,514 6,211 104 7,347
62,184 1,036 71,636 43,420 723 51,367
627,534 10,455 722,919 930,017 15,494 _ 1,100,210
7,323,813 122,015 _ 8,437,033 _ 6,945,445 115,711 _ 8,216,461
12,880,974 214,507 14,838,882 12,120,736 201,931 14,338,830
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

oy e year e 10 furve 2018
NEOITES 2017
RMEDO0
Oither income and other expenses (3 29,060
Depreciation (1901
Ceneral and administrative expenses (40,578}
Finance cosis (19)
Share of results of joint ventures z 680,353
Profit before tax B66B. 626
Income fax expense L (37,033}
Profit for the year 9 631,593

Other comprehensive income (expense)
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange gain (loss) arising on translation of foreign

operations 773l
Total comprehensive incomse for the year 639,386
Profit for the year atiributable to:
Ohwners of the Company 622,671
MNon-controlling interests 8,921
631,393
Total comprehensive income attributable to;
Cwners of the Company 630,464
Non-controlling interests 8,922
639, 386
RME cewrts
Earnings per share 12
Basic 20,21

HOPEWELL HIGHWAY INFRASTRUCTLHE LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2007710 |
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As af 30 Jure 218
MOTES 2007
RAE N
ASSETS
MNon-current Assels
Interests in joint venlures 14 517,922
Investment 15 4,785
Property and equipment 16 253
5,176,990
Current Assels
Deposits and prepayments 41
Dividend and other receivables 17 1,662
Bank balances and cash 18 469,067
471,670
Total Assets 5,648,660

ECQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Capital and Reserves

Share capital 19 270,603
Share premium and reserves 5,255,732
Equity attributable 10 owners of the Company 5,526,335
Naon-controlling interests 30,826
Total Equity 5,557,161
Mon-current Liability
Deferred tax liability 21 80,215
Current Liabilities
Payabiles and accruals 11,284
Dividend payahle -
11,284
Total Liabilities 97,490
Total Equity and Liabilities 5,648,660
Cash and cash equivalents 469,067
Tianliang ZHANG Ji L
Director Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Fow the year eooed 30 jume 2018

Attribuable o owaers of the Company

o=
Sthare Tramslation  Relained controffing
capital resene profils Tolal  inlerests Tolal
RMEO00  RMETO0  RWBDOD  RMBODD  RAMETN  RMEDO0  RMEDOD  RMST00
270,403

L

As gt | July 2016 466724 N4TI0 PMET 2435416 BETLEN) 35 BTIRIT4

Exchange pain on tramlalion
of fiweign perations
Profit for the yuar
Total comprehensive income:
for the year
Dividends recognied & disibution
dharing the year (Note 11}
Dividerds paid i non-contralling
inferesis

1.793 = T = 79
- BRATI GG L )

17 ERET EMA 8922 K336

(1341, %5 - A0y s TReTel = [1LITh74%

As & 10 June 2017
Enchange loss on iransiation of

foreign

Peafit fior the vrar

Tootal comprehesie income:
for the yea
Change in profil sharing of
 joint ventum

Dividendh ssed # disibut
charing the year {Moge 11)
Dividends paid o non-contralling
inferests

Asal 30 June 2018

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group in Renminbi
(“RMB") (the presentation currency of the Group), the equity transactions and accumulated carnings
denominated in Hong Kong Dollar (*HKD®) are translated at the exchange rales at the transaction dates,
Before the change in functional currency of the Company from HKD ta RMB during the year ended 30 june
2009, the exchange differences recognised in translation reserve represented the difference between the
equity transactions and accumulated earnings translated at the exchange rates at the transaction dates and
the assets and labilities translated ot the closing rates at the end of each reporting period. Subsequent to the
change in functional currency of the Company, the exchange diffcrences recognised in translation reserve
reprosented translation of its foreign operations.

The special final dividend for the year ended 30 June 20017 of RMBI0 cents (2017: for the year ended 30
lune 2016 of RMBAD cents) per share amounting to approximately RMB307 066,000 (2017:
RMB1,254,262,000) was distributed from the share premium arisen al the time before the change in
functional currency of the Company from HKD to RMB. Accordingly, the share premium and the
cormesponding transtation reserve had been debited by RMB387, 790,000 (2017: RMB1, 541,965,000} and
credited by RMB80,724,000 (2017: RMB287,703,000) respectively.

Pursuant to the joint venture agreement of Guangzhou-Shenzhen Zhuhai Superhighway Company Limited
(“GS Superhighway V7, the Group’s profit sharing ratio in GS Superhighway [V adjusted from 48% to 45%

from 1 July 2017 for the nest ten years until the end of contractual operation period, fe. 30 June 2027,
Accordingly, the Group's share of the reserves atiributable to the GS Superhighway [V had been adjusted.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Fow thee yar erded 360 fune 2008

2017
RAE N
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax bbb, bl
Adjustments for:
Dividend income from invesiment -
Interest inconme {22,539}
Gain on disposal of property and equipment 5
Met exchange (gzain) loss (5,521 §
Depreciation 190
Share of results nanin‘t vonlLres (60,353
Ciperating cash flows before movements in working capital (40,597)
Increase in deposits and prepayments 2500
{Increasel decrease in other receivables ()
Increase [decreased in pavables and accruals 1,706
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES (37,0700
INVESTIMNG ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property and equipment -
Proceeds on disposal of property and equipment =
Dividends received (net of PRC withholding tax) 1,619,433
Interest received 22,361
Income tax paid for inlerest received 71 8
MNET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 1,641,787
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid to:
= erwners of the Company (1,799, 184)
= non-controlling interests of a subsidiary (24,650)
MET CASH USED IN FINANMCING ACTIVITIES (1,823,834)
MNET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {219,117 |
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BROUGHT FORWARD 652,435
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES 15,749
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CARRIED FORWARD 469,067

ot Cash and cash squivalents comprise cash at harks and cash om hard, and deposits with banks subgeciedd o insignificant risk of
change Imvalue, and with a maturity of thres manths or less from date of placing.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fo e pear el 30 e 2018

1. General Information

Hopewell Highway Infrastructure Limited (the *Company™) is an exempted company with limited
liahility incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of |ong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange®). Prior to 4 April 2008, the Company's immediate holding
company was Anber Investments Limited, a limited company incorpaorated in the British Viegin slands.
The Company’s ultimate holding company was Hopewell Haldings Limited (“HHL"), a public limited
company incorporated in Hong Kong whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. On 4 April 2018,
Shenzhen Investment Holdings Co,, Dt (50308 PR RUE 51, o company established in the PRC
with limited lability, became the Company's ultimate parent company, after scquining approximately
66.69% of the tofal number of issued shares of the Company held by Anber lnvegaments Limited and
Shenzhen Investment International Capital Holdings Infrastructure Co,, Lid. (02 R R SRR
BHE L), a company incorporated in the British Viegin lslands with limited liability, became the
Company’s immediate holding company.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of business af the Company are disclosisd in
the section of corporMe informatian in the annual report,

The Company is an investment holding company. Details of the principal activities of the principal
subsidiarios and the joint venbures are set out in nofes 24 and 14 respectively,

The Company’s functional currency and presentation currency ane RME.

2. Application of New and Revised International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs")

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current year
The Group has applied the following amendments to IFRSs issued by International Accounting
Standards Board for the first time in the curment year:

IFRS 12 (Amendments) As part of the Annual Improvements 1o IFRS Standards
2014-2016 Cycle

1AS 7 (Amendments) Disclosure Initiative

1AS 12 i Amendments) Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

Except as described below, the application of the amendments 1o IFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group's financial performance and positions for the current and prior years
andior on the disclosunes sef out in these consolidated financial statements.

1AS 7 (Amendments) Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time in the current year. The amendments
requine an entity 1o provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to ovaluate changes in
liahilitics arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. In addition, the
amendments also requine disclosures on changes in financial assets if cash flows from those financial
assets were, or future cash flows will be, included in cash flows from financing activities.
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2. Application of New and Revised International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs") (continued)

Amendments (o IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current year (continued)

IAS 7 (Amendmenlts) Disclosure Initiative (continued)

Specifically, the amendments require the following to be disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash
flows; (ii) changes arising from obtaining or losing control of subsidiarics or other businesses; (i} the
effect of changes in foreign exchange rates; (ivl changes in fair values: and {v) other changes,

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of these items is provided in note 27,
Consistent with the transition provisions of the amendments, the Group has not disclosed comparative
information for the prior vear, Apart from the additional disclosuere in note 27, the application of these
amendments has had no impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements,

New and revised 1FRSs in issue bul not yel effective
The Group has not early applied the following new and revised IFESs that have been issued but are not

oOoOooodn

yoi eifective:

IFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle!

IFRS 2 {Amendments) Classification and Measuremenl of Share-bazed Paymenl
Trapsactions'

IFRS 4 {Amendments) Applying IFRS 9 Financial Insfruments with (FRS 4 Insurance
Contracts

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments’

IFRS 9 (Amendments) Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation®

IFRS 10 and 1AS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its

[Amendments) Associale or point Venlun®

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and the related
Amendments’

IFRS 16 Leases”

IFR5 17 Imsurance Contracls’

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration’

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatmenis®

1AS 19 (Amendments) Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement®

I1AS 28 (Amendments) Long-tenm Interests in Associates and |oint Ventures®

LAS 28 (Amendments) As part of the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle!

145 40 (Amendments] Transfers of Investment Property’

' Effective for annual periods beglnning on o aftey 1 January 2018
' Dfiective for annual perioch beghnning on o after 1 January 2019
o Fffextive for annual periods begenning an or after 1 Jansiary 2001
| Effective for amnial periods beginming an or afier & dato b be detormsined

Except for IFRS 9 mentioned below, the directors of the Company (“Directors”) anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments (o FRSs and Injerpretations will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial gatements in the foceseeable future.
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2. Application of New and Revised International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs") (continued)

Mew and revised IFRSs in issue bul nol yel effeclive icontinued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
IFRS @ introduces new requirements for the classification and measuremient of financial assets;
financial liabilities and general hedge accounting and impairment requirements for financial assots.

Key requiremonts of IFRS 9 which ane relevant (o the Group are:

# all recognised financial asscts that are within the scope of IFRS 9 are required 1o be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within a
business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that hasve contraciual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. Debe
insiruments that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and that have contractual terme that give nse
on specificd dates o cash flows that are sobely payments of principal amd interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(TFVTOCIT). All other financial assets are measured at their faic valee at subsequent accounting
periods, In addition, under IFRS 9. entitics may make an irrevocable election 1o present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that is nod held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss; and

s inrefation to the impairment of inancial assets, IFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as
opposed o an incured credit loss model under 1AS 39 “Financial lnstruments: Becogaition and
Measurement”. The expected credit loss model requines an entity to accounl lor expected credit
losses amd chamges in those expected credit losses at each reporting date (o reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition, In ather words, it is no longer necessary for a credil event (o
have pecurred before credit losses ane recognised.

Based on the Group's financial instruments and risk management policies as at 30 June 2018, the
Directors anticipate the following potential impact on initial application of IFRS 9:

Classification and measurement;

»  unlisted equity security classified as available-for-sale investment carried at cost less impaimment
as disclosed in note 15: this security qualified for designation as measured at FVTOC! under IFRS
9 and the Group will measure this security at fair value at the end of subsequent reporting periods
with fair value gains or losses 10 be recognised as other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the investments revaluation reserve, Upon initial application of IFRS 9, the fair value
adjustment relating to this securily would be adjusted o investment revaluation reserve as at |1
July 2018,

*  All ther financial assets and financial liabilites will continue to be moasured on the same basis
a5 are curnently measured under [AS 39,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow the year et JEF farwr 200007

2. Application of New and Revised International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs") (continued)

MNew and revised IFRSs in issue bul nol yelt eifective (continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instraments (continued)

Impairment

In general, thi Directors anticipate that the application of the expected credit loss model of IFRS 9 will
result i carlier provision of credit losses which are not yet incurred in relation o the Group's financial
assets measured at amortised costs and ather items that subject 1o the impairment provisions upan
application of IFRS 9 by the Group.

Based on the dssessmaent by the Directors, i the expected credil loss model were o be applicd by the

Group, the Directors anficipate that the application of the expected credit loss model will have no
material impact to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the IFRS:s issued by
Infernational Accounting Standards Board. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Coverning the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis at the end of
each reporing period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is penerally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods
and services,

Fair value is the price that would be received 1o sell an asset or paid to transfor a liability in an orderly
transaction betwesn market participants at the measurement date, regardiess of whether that price is
directly abservable or estimatisd using another valuation technigue,

The principal accounting policies are sot out below,

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entitics
conirolled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

®  has power over this invesies;

* s exposed, or has rights, to varialle returns from its involvement with the investee; and

*  has the abilily (o use its power (o aifect ils refurns;
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obains control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the Group loses contril of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year ane included in the consolidated statement of profit o loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
crases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and cach item of other comprehensive income are attributed (o the owners of the
Company and (o the non-controlling inferests. Tolal comprehensive inoome of subsidiaries is atribuied
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
contralling interests having a dhficit balance,

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting palicies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation,

Interests in joint venlures

A joant venture 15 a point arcangement whereby the parties that have joint contral of the arangement
have rights 1o the net assits of thi: joint arrangement. Joint control s the contractially agreed sharing
of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activitics requine
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control,

The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures are incorparated in these consolidated financial
stalements using (he equily method of accounting, The financial statements of joint venlures used for
enquity accounting purposes are prepancd wsing uniform acoounting policies as those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances, Appropriate adjustments have been made (o
conform the joinl venture's accounting policies to those of the Group. Under the equity method, an
investment in a joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the joint venture, Changes in net assets of the joint venture other than profit
or loss and other comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such changes resulted in
changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group's share of losses of joint venlure
excoeeds the Group’s interest in that joint venture (which incledes any long-lerm interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the joint venturel, the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Giroup has incurred legal or constructive ohligatinons or made payments on behalf of the joint venture.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Interests in joint venlures (continued)

The reguiremaents of 1AS 39 are applied to determine whether it is necessary 1o recognise any
impairment with respect (o the Croup’s investment in a joint venture, When necessary, the entire
carrying amaunt af the investment (including gooadwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount, Any impairment recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impaiement 15 recogaised in
accordance with LAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increasces,

The Group has incurred additional development expenditure for the construction and development of
the foll expressways operated by the joint ventures, which were not accounted for by those entities.
Such cost are included in additional cost of investments in joint ventures and are amorised over the
joint venture period on the same basis as that adopled by the relevant joint ventures in respect of
amartisation of its project cost, commencing from the date of operation of the project underaken, On
disposal of ajoimt venture, the atinbulable amount of the unamortised additional cost of investmenls is
included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

When a group enlity transacts with a joint venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the joint venture are recognised in the Group's consolidated financial stalements
only 1o the extent of interests in the joint venture that are oot related (o the Groug.

Properly and equipment
Propedty and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position al cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumualated impaioment, if any.

Depreciation is recogriscd so as to write off the cost of assels over their estimated uscful lives, using
the: straight-ling method, The estimated wseful lives and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each repording period, with the eifect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis,

An item of propery and equipment is derecognised upon disposal oF when no fulure economic
benedits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the

disposal or retirement of an item of property and equipment is determined as the dilference betwesn
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is
recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Giroup's activitios, as described below.

Interest income s accrued on a lime basis, by reference lo the principal outstanding and at the
effective inferest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated futune cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial

recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the rights o receive payment have heen
estallished.

Leasing
Leases are classifecd as finance leases whonever the terms of the lease transhor substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership o the lessee, All other feases are classificd as operating leases.

Ciperating leases payment is recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of ‘each individual group entity, transactions in currencies other
than the functional currency of that entity (loreign currencies) are recognised af the rates of exchange
prevailing on the dates of the transactions, At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
dencminaled in foreign currencies are reteanslated al the rales prevailing al that date. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences anising on the settlement of monetary items, and on retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial statements of the Group in RMB, the assets
and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are translated into RMB using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of sach reporting penod. Income and expenses items ane ransiated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, ane
recopnized in ofher comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the heading of translation
TESErve,

Cin the disposal of a foreign operation (e, a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
aperation, o a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or
a partial dispasal of an interes! in a joint arrangement that includes a foreign operations of which the
retained interest becomes a financial asseth, all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable 1o the owners of the Company are reclassified 1o profit or loss.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Retiremeni benefil costs
Payments (o defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are rocognised as an expense when
employees have rendercd service entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax cerrently payable and doferred tax.

The tiax currently payatili is based on the taxable profit for the year, Taxable profit diffees from *profit
besfore tax” as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or foss and ether comprehensive income
becawse of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for corrent tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reparting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liahilities in the consalidated financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit, Difered tix labilities are generally recognizsed for all taxable temporary
difierences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differcnces to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible lemporary
difierences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the lemporary
difierence arises from the imitial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction thal affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting peofit,

Dieferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and interess in joinl ventures, excepl whese the Group is abile o control the roversal of
the temparary difference and it s probable that the temparary difierence will not reverse in the
foreseeable future, Deferred tax assets ansing from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interesds are only recognised (o the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temposary differences and they are
expecied to reverse in [he foreseeable future,

The carrying amount of deferned tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced
tor the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available 1o allow all or
part of the asset to be recovened.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measwred at the fax rates that are expected (o apply in the period
in which the lability is settled o the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws]) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Group expects, al the end of the reporting period, o recover or settle
the camying amount of its asseis and liabilities,

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate (o items that are

recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and
dhfermed fax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equily respectively.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments
Financial assels and financial liabilities are recognised when'a group entity becomes a party o the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair valoe, Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial labilitics are added 1o
of deductid from the faie value of the financial assets or financial Labilities, as appropeiate, on initial

recognition,

Financial assels

Financial assets are classified as loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and i= determined at the time
af inifial recognition,

Effective inferest method

Thae effective interest method s a method of calculating the amartised cost of a debt instrumaent and of
allocating interest income over the relevant pediod, The effective interest rati is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash recoipts (including all fees and paints paid or received that form an
integral part of the cifcctive interest rate, ransaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, o the nil carrying
amunt on initial recognition,

Interest income s recognised on an gifective infenest basis for debd instruments,

Lovans and receivahbles

Loans and receivables (including dividend and ather recervables and bank balances and cash) are nan.
derivative financial assets with fixerd or determinable payments that ane not gquoted in an active market,
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured al amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment.

Available-for-sale financial assels

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated as available-for-sale or
are nod classified as (a) loans and receivables, (b) held-lo-maturity investments or () financial assets at
tair value through profit or boss,

Available-foe-sale equity investiments thal do not have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value canpol be relfably measured are measured at cost less any identified impairment at
the end of each reporting period.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in profit of loss when the Group's
right 1o receive the dividends is established,
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instrumenls (continued)

Financial assels (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of cach reporting period. Financial
assets are considered (o be impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or mone
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows
of the financial assets have been affected,

Objective evidence of impairment could inclucde:

= significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

= breach of contract, such asa default or delinquency in intenest or principal paymoents; o
= it becoming probable that the borower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment fecognised is the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial assets’ original effective interest rate,

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of retuen fioe 2 similar financial asset. Such impairment will nof
b reversed in subsequent periods.

The careying amaunt of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment directly for all financial assets
with the exception of dividend and other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account, Changes in the carrying amounl of the allowance account are
recognised im profit or loss, When dividend and other receivalde are considered uncollectible, they are
written off against the allowance account, Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously writien off ane
credited to profit or loss,

For financial assets carried at amoised cost, iTin a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment is roversed through profit or loss to the extent that
the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does nol exceed whal the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised,
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equily instruments

Diebits and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classificd as either financial labilities or as
euity instruments in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial lability and an equity instrument.

Exquity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities, Equity instrumients issued by a group entity are recognised at the
proceeds received, not of direct issue costs,

Financial liabilitics
Financial liabilities at amortised cost {including payables and accrials and dividend payable) are
subsequently measuned at amortised cost using the effective interest method,

Effective interest method

Thes effective interest method i< a method of calculating the amonised coct of a financial liabilaty and
of allocating interest expense over the relevant period, The effective inferest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated fulure cash payments lincluding all fees and points paid or recesved that form an
integral part of the effiective inferest rate, (ransaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial Habslity, or, where appropriate, o shorer period, 1o the net carmving
amount on initial recognition,

Interes! expense is recopgnised on an effcctive interest basis,

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
assel expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
owenership of the asset (o ancther entily,

On derecognition of a financial asset, the ditference between the asset’s carrving amount and the sum
af the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit and loss,

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difierence between the carrying amount of the financial
Inabsility derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in prodil o loss.

Impairment on tangible assels

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets o
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment, If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determing the extent of
the impairmend, if any. When it is nol possible o estimale (he recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unil 1o which the asset
hebongs, When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, carporate assets are
also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they ane allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment on langible assels (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Inassessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
dizcount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the sk specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

IF th recovirable amount of an asset (or a cash-genedating unitl s cstimated (o be less than its carnying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced 1o its recoverablo
amount. The amount of the impairment would be allocated pro rata to the assets of the unit. An
impairment is recognised immediately in peofit or loss,

Whaere an impairment subsequently reverses, the cafrying amaount of the asset (or a cash-gencrating
unit) is increased (o the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carmying
amaunt docs not exceed the carrying amaunt that would have been determined had no impairment
been recognised for the asset or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment is
recognised immediately in profit or [oss.

4. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty

In the application of the Growp's accounting palicies, which arc describied in note 3, the Directors arc
required (o make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrving amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and asociated assumptions
are hased on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant, Actual results
may differ from these etimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions ane reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions fo accounting
estimaltes are recognised in the period in which the estimate s revised if the revision affects only that
period, o in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
peerics,

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those invalving estimations, that the Directoes
have made in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the comsolidated financial statements,

Classification of Guangzhou-Shenzhen-Zhubai Superhighway Company Limited (*GS
Superhighway V") and Guangdong Guangzhou-Zhuhai West Superhighway Company
Limited (“West Roule |¥*) as joint venlures

Hoth G5 Superhighway 1V and West Boute 1V ane limited liability companies whose legal form confers
separation between the parties to the joint arrangement and the Company itseli. Funhermore, these are
ne contractual arrangements or any other Bacts and circumstances that specify that the partics (o the
joint arrangement hiove rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities of the joint arrangement.
Accordingly, G5 Superhighway |V and West Route |V are Classified as jodnt ventures of the Group.
Dhetails ane sof out in note 14,
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4. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncerlainly tcontinued)

Key sources of eslimation uncerlainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and othor key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting. perinds that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assels and liabilitics within the next financial year,

Interests in joinl ventures/share of resulls of joinl venlures

(it Amertisation of concession intangible assets of the joinl ventures

Amuortisation of concession intangible assets of the joint ventures of the Group i calculated based
on units-of-usage hasis, i the ralio of actual traffic volume of the undedying toll expressways
for a particular period over the total expected traffic volume of the underlying ol expressways
aver the remaining concession periods af the service concession agreements. The tofal expected
traffic volume over the remaining concession period was estimated by the management with
reference 1o a report preparcd by a thicd party traffic consultant in a prior year taken into
consideration of various factors such as the annual growth rate of the traffic volume, the aciual
traffic wolume in the recent periods, the change of the fransportation network of the region and
government palicies relating to the toll expressway operation in the PRC, As part of the
established policy of the Group, the mapagement has seviewed the tolal expected traffic voleme
at the end of the reporting periods. Adjustments may need to be made to the carmying amounts of
concession ntangible assets should there be a material difference between the total expected
traffic volame and the actual resulis.

As at 30 June 2018, the interesis in joint ventures amounted o RMB4,B51 836,000 (2017:
RMB5,171,.922.0000 and the share of results of joint ventures for the year then ended amouwnied
oy RMBZ 24,433,000 (2017; RMBGED, 53,0000, Included in the share of rsults of joint ventures
was an amount of RMBG1 8,494,000 (2017: RMB592,754,000), which represeated the share of
amortisation of concession intangible assets of the joint ventures of the Group, The management
cansiders that the amortisation is calculated by reference (o the best estimates of the total
expected traffic volumes of the underlying ol expressways and they should not be materially
difterent from the actual traffic volumes in future, The current year amorlisation of concession
intangible assets is more (2017: morel than the amorisation estimated in the prior financial year
based on the then expected fraffic volumes for fulure financial years and the effect on share of
results of joint ventures is approximate (o RME1 2,228,000 (2017: RMB11,711,000),

(i) Resuriacing obligations of the joint ventures
The joint ventures of the Group have contractual obligations under the contraciual service
arrangements o maintain the wll expressways (o a specified level of serviceability over the
respective concession periods, These abligations 1o maintain or restore the toll expressways,
except for upgrade services, are to be recognised and measwred as resurfacing obligations,
Resurfacing obligations had been made at the present value of expendilures expecied (o be
incurred by the joint ventures to settle the obligations.

As at 30 June 20018, the intergsts in joint ventures amounted to RMBS, 851,836,000 (2017
RMB5,171,922,000) and share of results of joint ventures for the year then ended amounted fo
RMBZ24,433,000 (2017: RMB680,353,0000. Included in the interests in joinl venlures, an amoun
of RMB207,590,000 i2017: RME179,787,000), which repeesented the share of provision for the
resurfacing obligations of the joint ventures of the Group,
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4. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty ccontinued)

Key sources of estimation uncerlainty (continued)
Interests in joint ventures/share of resulls of joint ventures (continued)

(i) Resurfacing abligations of the joint ventures (continued)
Thie amount expected to be required to settle the obligations at thee end of thi reparting period is
determined based on the number of major resurfacing works to be undertaken over the
concession periods under the service concession agreements and the expected costs 1o be
incurned for each event, The costs are then discounted to the present value based onca pre-fax
discount rate.

The expected costs for maintenance and resurfacing and the timing of such events to take place
involve cstimates made by the management, which were based on the resurfacing plans of the
Group, historical costs incurred for similar activities and the latest quotations from the service
provider.

If the expected expenditures, resurfacing plans and discount rate wera different from (he
management’s current estimates, the change in resurfacing abligations is required ta be accounted
far prospectivily.

The management are of the view that the discount rate currently used in the current estimate
should reflect thix time value of money and the risks specific to the obligations,

(iii) Income taxes of a joint venture
As at 30 June 2018, as included in interests in joint ventures, an amount of RMB22,034,000
{2017: RMBS54,533,000) represents the share of deferred tax assel of a joint venture in relation o
ts unwsed tax losses, The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether
sulficient future prodits of taxable temporary diffiecences will be available in the futere, 1 the
actual futune peodits gencrated ane less than expected, a reversal of defermed lax assels may arise,
which would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such a reversal takes place,

5. Segment Information

The Group's roportable and operating segments are determined based on information reported to the
chief operating decision maker for the purpose of resource ol location and performance assessment,

Information reported to the chiel operating decision maker, including segment revenue, carnings
berfore intenest, tax, depreciation and amartisation (CEBITDATY, depreciation and amartisation, inferest
and tax, and segment results, is maore specifically focused on individual toll expressways projects
jointly operated and managed by the Group and the relevant joint venture partner. Accordingly, the
Group's reporting and aperating segments under IFRS 8 "Operaling Segments™ are thercfore as follows:

= Guangzhou-5henzhen Superhighway (°GS Superhighway™)
- Western Delia Route
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5. Segment Information (continued)
Information regarding the above segments is reported below.

Segment revenue and resulls

M
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Feate; Nt eschamge (loss) gain (mot of related income tas) is composad of the Geoup's shane of the exchange gain (net of nelated
Irscasenye fand aof & polen sestune of BAMB23, 503,000 (200171 et exchange biss (et of related income gk of RMB22,480,000}
andl the net excharge loss of the Group of RYIB1,I82,000 (2017; net axchange gain of BMAS,521,000).

Thee segment revenue represents the Group's share of joinl ventures' (ol revenue received and
receivable (net of value-added tax) from the operations of toll expressways in the PRC based on the
profit-sharing ratios specified in the relevant joint venture agreements. All of the segment revenue
reparted above is earned from external customers.

The EBITDA, depreciation and amodtisation, and inlerest and lax represent the Growp's shane of joint
ventures” EBITDA, depreciation and amortisation, and interest and tax from the operations of toll

expressways in the PRC before net exchange gainfloss, based on the profit-sharing ratios specified in
the relevant joint venture agroements,
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5. Segment Information (continued)

Segment revenue and resulls (continued)

The segraent results represent (i) the Group's shame of joint ventures’ results from the operations of toll
expressways in the PRC before net exchange gainfloss (not of related income tax) based on the profit-
sharing ratios specified in the relevant joint venture agreements; (il net of the withholding tax
attributed to the dividend received from and the undistributed earmings of the joint ventures; and (i)
amartisation of additional cost of investment in joint ventures. This is thie measure reported to the chicf
operating decision maker for the purposes of resounce allocation and performande assessment.

The total segment results can be reconciled to the share of results of joint venlurcs as presented in
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive incomae as foll ows:

27
RME 00
Total segrment results 65, BO7
Adld:
Mot exchange (loss) gain (net of related income tax) (22,4800
Withholding tax attributed to the dividend received

fram and the undistributed carmings af the joint ventures 37,026 §

Share of resulls of joint ventures as presented in
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
cormprehensive income GB0,353

Other segment information

The below other segment information, included in the measure of segment profit or loss, reprosents. the
Group's shane of interost income of the joint ventures. Such amount relating to the joint ventures are
eliminated under equity method of accounting to reconcile from “Segment total” 1o “Consolidated

total”.
G5 Concolidated
RA BTN RATE 0 RMAT RAM BTN

2015 23539
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3.

Segment Information (continued)

Geographical information

The operations of the Group's joint ventures ane located in the FRC. All of the joint ventures” revenue
from external customers was generated from the services provided in the PRC and the location of the
non-current assets excluding interests in joint ventures and investment amounting to RMBE4,000
(2017: RMB283,000) are in Hong Kong.

Segment assels and liabilities

Segmient asseds and labilities are not disclosed in the consolidated financial faternents as they are not
regulardy provided 1o chiel operating decision maker for the purpose of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

Other Income and Other Expenses

Interest income rom bank deposits

Met exchange gain (loss)

Dividend income from investment

Gain on disposal of property and equipment
Oihers

Share of Results of Joint Ventures

d0rr
REMEOOD

Share of results of joint ventures before share of imputed
interest expenses incurred by a joint venture on intenest-free
registered capital contributions made by the Group and

amortisation of additional cost of investments in joint ventures 767,736
Amartisation of additional cost of investments in joint ventures {67,383
Share of imputed interest expenses incurred by a joint venture on

interest-free registered capital contributions made by the Group {45,096)
Imputed interest income recognised by the Group on

interest-free registered capital contributions made by the Group 45,098

680,351 |
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8. Income Tax Expense

2mz
RAE (00

The tax charge comprises;

PRC Enterprise Income Tax ("EIT™) 84,230
Deferred fax (Note 21) (47,197)

37,063

Mo provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as there was no assessable profit derived from
or arising in Hong Kong for bath years.

The EIT charge of the Group for the yvear ended 30 June 2018 included an amount of RMEBS2, 680,000
(2017 RMBEA,223,000) representing the 5% withholding tax imposed on dividends declared during
the year by a joint venture of the Group of which the corresponding amount had already beon
provided for deferred tax in prior years in respect of undistributed eamings of a joint venture.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit before tax per consalidated
statement of prafit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

2007
FEATE (08
Profit before tax 668,626
Tax at normal PRC income tax rate of 25% (2017; 25%) 167,157
Effect of different lax rales on income tax expense 17}
Tax effect of income not taxable for fax purposes (7,242)
Tax effect of expenses nof deductible for tax purposes 10,197
Tax effect of share of results of joint ventures (170,088H)
Dreforred tax on undistributed earmings of the joint ventunes
iNote 21) 147,197 |
WHhhuldInE_lnu on mtnin&s distributed by a joint venture 84,223
Income tax expense 37,033
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9. Profit for the Year

2017
BME Q00

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging:
Auditor's remuneration 1,404
Directors” emolumenis (Note 100 15,359
Other stafi costs 16,202
Total stafi costs 31,561
Depreciation of property and egquipment 150
Finance costs (MNote) 19

Malte: Thir asmonent regiresenty the bank charges Tor both years,

10. Directors’ and Five Highest Paid Individuals’ Emoluments

Direclors” emoluments
The emaluments paid or payable to each of the 13 (2007: 8) Directors were as follows:

i

§r§ s
i

:

Dty UL e
Tianfkang THANG inowe b
Cheng W i i

JUIL facte

rian Chrvid Munun L] mete et
Y Lumg CHING jaaie
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8
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BEESIIE, B, v E!’E

5
g
B

The Executive Directors” emoluments shown above were paid for their seevices in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the Group. The emoluments of the Non-exeoutive
Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors shown above were paid for their services as
directors of the Company,
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10. Directors’ and Five Highest Paid Individuals’ Emoluments (continued)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)
e

fal M Zhengyu LIU was appoisted as an Mon-esecutive Direcior and the Chairman of ibe bowd of disecton of the Company
itk *Board™) on 11 April 2018, He walved his director's fee for acting as an Non-esecutive Dirschar and the Chaiman o
thae el for Ehis peeiodd fram 11 Apdil 2018 to 30 june 2015,

b M Tianliang FHANG was appoirted as an Peecutive Director amd the Genesal Manages af the Campany on 11 April
HTH.

(E) WA Cheng WWu was appolmied as an Eoecuthve Director and thee Dueputy General Managaer of thie Company on 11 Apeil
Fall [

tdi M. fi LIU was appointed as an Ceecutive Director, the Deputy General Manager of the Company and secretary to the
Haard on 11 April 2008,

te M Brian David Man Bun Ll s sppointed as a chaleman of the Remuneration Commidites of the Company (“Remunesation
Cosmmities") on 11 Apeil 2008,

i wa Y Lung CHING was appointed as an Independent Nom-evecutve Liirector, the chaieman of the Audit Commines of
the Company (“Audil Commimes) snd a member of the Remuneration Committes on 11 Apil 2018,

o M Ty Chung Min BEAN was agipodiited] as an iobegrenstdent Mon-executive Disectos, the nembier al il Auadit Comimittes:
anid (he Remuneration Commiibee on 11 Apeil 2018

ki Sir Gordon Ying Sheung WU wos re-thesignatid from an Execublve Director and thie Chalrman of the Baard io a Mo
enacutive Director on 11 April 2008 and pesigned a5 a Mon-ssecative Director on 2 May 2018,

i A Bddie Fing Chasg HO was re-designated from an Executive Directar aml the Vice Chakiman of the Boand fo & Non-
exprulive Director on 11 Apnil 2008 anid reskgnesd a5 8 Mo -execabve Dipector on 2 May 2008,

i wa Thomas leflesson WU was ne-gdesignated from an Executive Disecior amd the Manaplog Divecsos of the Company 10 a
s -necillve Director omn 11 Apell 2008 and redgned as 3 Non-cuscuthve Dirsctor on 2 May 2070,

iky M Alan O Hung CHAN was re-designaied from an Escculive Directoe ane the Deputy Mamaging Drector of the
Comparry foa Mon-executhor Director an 11 Apell 2008 and reskgnesd a5 3 Nor-soecutive Director on 2 May 2018,

i M, Ching Kwong FOON ceased (o b as o chai ol gl Bl ation it aml ber af the Audis
Commitiee on 11 April 2008 and mesigned as an Independent Mop-execitive Director on 2 May 2008,

imp A Yuk Keang 1P coased (o be as o chairman of the Audii Commitiee ard a member of the Remunention Commites on
11 Aprll 2078 and resignes as an Indepenidient Monewculive Diecior on 2 say 20600,

in) A Alexander Lanson LIN eesigned as an irdependent Mon-oxecutive Director on 2 May 2014,

Five highest paid individuals” emoluments
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, 4 (2017 4) were Directors whose
dhistails of thedr emoluments are disclosed above,

The emoluments of the remaining one (2007: one) highest paid employes was as follow:

2017

RMB 000

Salaries and other benetits 1,068
Discredionary bonus 121
Contributions o retivement benefits plans 1

1,205

During the years ended 30 June 2007 and 30 june 2008, no emoluments wene paid by the Group to
any of the persons who are Directors or the five highest paid individuals of the Group as an
inducement (o join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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11. Dividends

2017
RMB000 |

Dividends recognised and paid as a distribution during the year:

Interim dividend for the vear ended 30 June 2007 of

EMBH.6 cents (equivalent o HED. 5941 6 cents)) per share 275,047
Final dividend for the vear ended 30 June 2007 pakd of

RMB11.6 conts (equivalent o HK13, 58986 cents)

(2017: for the year ended 30 June 2016 paid of RMBB.2 cents

(eguivalent o HKS, 54840 centsih per sharg: 246,840
Special final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2007

paid of RMB10 cents (equivalent to HK11.71540 cents)

(2017 for the year ended 30 June 2006 paid of RMBAD coents

{equivalent to HRAGB.57760 cents)) per share 1,254,262

1,776,749

Qividends recognised and payable as a distribution during the
year:

Interim dividened for the year ended 30 June 200 8 recognised
at RMB11.6 cents (equivalend 1o HK14.24028 cenis) per share -

Final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2008 proposed of

RMBR.T cents (equivalent to HKD 1114551 cenes)

(2007: for the year ended 30 June 2007 EMBT1.6 cents

(equivalent to HK13.58986 cents)) per share 357,476
Special final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2018

proposed of RMB10 cents (egquivalent o HK1T.4583 conls)

(2017 for the year eaded 30 June 2007 of RMB10 cents

{equivalent o HR11.71540 cemsl) per share 3048, 169

635,645

As al 7 June 2008, the Directors have declared that an interim dividend in respect of the year ended
30 June 2018 of RMB11.6 cents (equivalent o HK14.24028 cents) per share amounting to
approximately RME156, 796,000 shall be paid o the shageholders of the Company registered as the
close of business on 30 July 2018,

A final dividend and special final dividend in respect of the year ended 30 June 2018 of RMB9,7 cents
{equivalent 1o HK11.114551 cents) per share and RMB10 cents (equivalent to HK11.4583 cents) per
share respectively are proposed by the Board. The dividends are subject to approval by shareholders at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and have not been included as liabilities in these consolidated
financial statemenis. The proposed final dividend and special final dividend are calculated based on
the total number of issued shares at the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements.
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12. Earnings per Share

The calculation of the basic camings per share attributable to the owners of the Company is hased on
the following data:

2017 | -
RMB'O00 =

Earnings for the purposes of basic earmings per share 622,671 |

2017 |
Number
of shares |

Weighted average number of ardinary shares
for the purposes of basic earnings per share 081,690,263 | 3,081,690.283

Mo diluted carnings per share bave Deen presented as there was no potential ordinary shares in issue
during bath years,

13. Retirement Benefits Plans

The Group has established the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the *MPF Scheme®) for its Hong
Kong employess. The assets of the scheme are held separately in funds which are under the control of
independent trustees. The retirement benefit scheme contributions charged to profit or loss represent
confributions paid or payable by the Group fo the scheme at 5% of each of the employees’ monthly
relevant income capped at HES30,000. In addition, the PRC employees employed by the Group are
members of the state-managed retirement benedit schemes operated by the PRC Government. The
Giroup is required to contribute 18% of their payroll to the retirement benefit schemes to fund the
benefits, The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirerment benefit schemes is to make
the required contributions under the schemes. At 30 Junc 2018, thene were no forfeited contributions
availahle 1o reduce futune obligations. The total contributions made by the Group to the MPF Scheme
and the PRC retirement benefit schemes for the year are RMBBIS,000 (2017: RMBT99,000).
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14. Interests in Joint Ventures

2017
RMB000 |

Unlisted investmonts:

Al cost
Cost of investment in a joint veniure 2,000,789
Additional cost of invesiments 2,520,218

Share of results of joint ventures before share of imputed interes
expenses incurred by a joint venture an interest-free registered
capital contributions mude by the Group (net of dividend
receivedl 1,636,243
Less: Share of accumulated imputed interest expenses incumed
by a joint venture on interest-free registored capital

contributions made by the Group [358,032)
Less: Accumulated amordisation of additional cost of investments (1,434,039)
4,385,179 |
At amortised cost
Registered capital contribution, at noeminal amaunt 2,449,500
Fair value adjustment on initial recognition 12,020,789
Accumulated imputed interest income recognised by the Group 358,032

786,743
5.171,922

Particulars of the Group®s joint ventures as at 30 june 2017 and 30 june 2018 ane as follows:

Place of
establishmerd Propartion of Proportion
and peincipal Futly paid regatered capital of yoting
Name of compamy pace of operation megistered capital  Priocipal activity rontribwlion rights beid
RERRELRERLA The FRC N Development, ot applicabls 5%
Cuangzhou-Sthenrhes-Zhuhal Note il opetasion and
illf"“iﬂmr Compary miragement of
Limited AN PPy
REFEEANECRUREE  ThePRC RME4.899,000,000  Development, S 5%
Guangdlong Guangzhou-Zhuhai (Mot pexasion and
Wesa Scperighway Compasy management of
Limited a0 PRy

Both joint ventures ane sino-foreign co-operative joint venture enterprises established to invest in toll
expressways projocts in the PRC,
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14, Interests in Joint Ventures (continued)

The principal terms of the joint venture agreements entered into between the relovant subsidiaries and
the cormesponding joint venture partner under which the joint ventures operate are as fol lows:

iy G5 Superhighway JV
G5 Superhighway |V is establishod to undertake the development, operation and management of
the G5 Superhighway, an expressway in Guangdong Province of the PRC running between
Shenzhen and Guangrhou. The operation periad 14 30 years from the official opening date 1 July
1997. Al the end of the operation period, all the immovable assets and facilities of GS
Superhighway IV will revert to the PRC joint venture partner without compensation.

The Group's entitberment 0 the prafit of the toll operations of G5 Superhighway 1V is 50% for the
initial 10 years of operation period, 48% for the next 10 years and 43% for the last 10 years of the
operation period,

The registered capital amounting to HESTO2,000,000 (equivalent o RMBEAT 1,000,000} previously
imjected by the Growp o GS Superhighway 1V bhad been repaid (o the Group by G5 Superhighway
IV during the vear ended 30 june 2008,

(i} Wesl Route |V
West Koute |V is established to undertake the development, operation and management of the
Western Dedta Route, an expressway linking Guangzhouw, Zhangshan and Zhuhai and was buill in
three phases,

Phase | of the Western Delta Route (*Phase | West™)

The total investment for the Phase | West is RMB1,680,000,000, 35% of which was funded by the
registered capital of West Route |V amounting o RMB588,000,000 which had been contributed
by the Group and the PRC joint venture partner in equal share (Le. cach to contribule
RAET94,000,0000. The operation period for Phase | West is 30 years commencing from 17
September 20003,

Phase 11 of the Weslern Delta Route (“Phase 11 West")

The total investment for Phase || West is RMBG, 715,000,000, 35% of which was funded by the
registered capital of West Route |V amounting 1o RMB2, 351,000,000 which had been contributed
by the Group and the PRC joint ventures pariner in equal share (i.e. each 1o contribule
RME1,175,500,000). The toll collection period for Phase [ West is 25 vears commencing from 25
Jure 2070,
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14. Interests in Joint Ventures (continued)

(i) Wesl Route |V (continued)
Phase 11l of the Western Delta Route (*Phase 111 Wesi™)
The total investment for the Phage [l Wiest is RMBS, 600,000,000, 35% of which was funded by
the registered capital of West Route |V amounting to RMBE1,960,000.000 which had been
contributed by the Group and the PRC joint venture parines in equal share [i.e, cach to contribute
RMBDE0,000,000). The toll collection period for Phase 111 West is 25 years commencing from 25
January 2013,

As at 30 June 2017 and 30 june 2018, the fully paid registered capital of West Route IV was
RABA B4, (00,000,

The Group is entitled to 50% of the distributable profits from operation of West Route JY. At the
end of the respective operationtoll collection periods of Phase | West, Phase I West and Phase 111
West, all the immovable assets and facilities of cach phase will be reverted w relevant PRC
governmental authority which regulates transportation without compensation, The registered
capital contributions are requincd ta be repaid to both the Group and the PRC joinl venlure
partner, The repayments are required (o be approved by the board of directors of West Route |V,

Summarised financial information of joint venlures

Summarizsed financial information in respect of the Group's joint ventures and reconciliation of the
surnmarised financial information (o the carrying amount of the inlerests i joint ventures recognised
in the consolidated financial statements are sei out below. The summarized financial information
below represents amounts shown in the joint venturd’s financial stalements prepared in accordance
with IFR5s,
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14. Interests in Joint Ventures (continued)

Summarised financial information of joinl venlures (continued)
In respect of the years ended 30 June 20017 and 30 June 2018

17
o
I Raute [V Toral
RME D00 RME D0 RAE00
Non-currend Asiefs
Praperty anc equipment 433,569 £49,184
Concession intangible ssts 141371 12368255
ASTAMO  1LHATA9
Currend Assels
flark balance andl cash
- Cash and cash cquivalents 740,085 122,704
= Time: cleposits with ariginal
maturity oves Hres months 50,000 Lo
Cithes 42577 20457
B33, 662 14310
Mon-current Liabslities
Resurfacing ofifizations 13283031 88,306
Man=urmend financial babilise
= Bank and other loans. [441049)  (7436,121)
Otbers (o749 (139976
(5096,043)  [7665,085)
Current Liabdlities
Curreer financial (iabilities
= Bank hasns (357,857 -
= Diidend payahle - -
= Inlerést payabihe (4,032} {3175
Chbers (600,290 (X90,062)
1962, 1801 1308130
e asets o fusnl ventures JAMATT 5007308
Propodtion of the Group's infes! 4% 3
et s s by he Geowp 1,636,500 2503669 4140170
Eficct of change in peofit-sharing
ritio o @ joind ventuse over (he
operation ball period (54427 = {4,427}
et assils altributable to the Group  158L074 2500668 4085743
Camying amaunt of addisanal ;
e o invisiments 1,048,040 e 1086179
Carrying amaund of the Groug's
inferests in joint venhues. Lh31, 008 L5ADA0E 5071922
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14. Interests in Joint Ventures (continued)

Summarised financial information of joint venlures (continued)

07
G5
v Kot [V Total
RARE (00 RME 00 KB 000 |

Toll revesnue

et of valuwe-added fas) 1,151,230 1,197, 144
Comstruction neveru: 119,080 13,893
Total rrvere Jdnodin 1.210.239
Construttion costs {119,050 (12,8931
Ocher income and aiher expense 12,637 15195
Prowishon of resuriaeing charges ey 455} 13,8331
Toll expressway operation

AP (EREN 147,758
General and administrative

AP (558, 1481 146,245
Depreciation and

amotisation chasis (778,377 1419,292)
Fimae £osls {130,315 (359,109
Irciamie B s (Nale i {456,934} (330900
Profia for the vear [Nole i) 1,369,965 220,18
Propartion of the Group’s infesst 8% S0%
Profit shared by the Group 637,595 1 767,716
Mofes ]

W The amaunt of income ax expendes ion West Route |V opeeonts defermed s spenses.

il Prodit for the fﬂdﬂﬁ-&whﬂlﬁ;‘r]v included the amount nfmﬂu-ilmwlla_hlﬁluurpln et @l
rerlated incomie tax (201 7: exchange bies (net of related income g of RMBAG, 878 000).

15. Investment

The investment represents intesest in unlisted Himited company established in the FRC and is classified
as available-for-gale financial assel, It s measured at cost less impairment at the end of the reporting
period because the Directors are of the opinion that the fair values cannat be measared reliably,
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16. Property and Equipment
Furnilure,
Muotor  fixtures and
veliches equipment Total
RME 000 RME"O00 RN BTN
COsT
Asat 1 July 2016 873 4,630 5,511
Disposalshwritien off - (200 20
As at 30 June 2017 873 4 ]
Additions.
Disposalsiwritien off
As at 30 June 2018
DEPFRECIATION
Asat 1 July 2016 518 4,520 5.038
Charge for the year 127 63 140
Eliminated on disposalsfwritten off
As at 30 June 2017
Charge for the year
Eliminated on disposalsferitten off
As af 30 June 2018
CARRYING AMOUNTS
As at 30 June 2017 228 55 283

The above items of property and equipment are depreciated over their estimated useful lives of 3 to 5
years from the date on which they became available for their intended use using the straight-line
methid.

17. Dividend and Other Receivables

The following is an analysis of the dividend and other receivables outstanding at the end of the
reparting period;

Dividend receivable from a joint venture (Note)
Imerest receivable
Others

Mole During the year ended 10 Jone 2008, dividend declared by G5 Supethighway [V o the Group amounting 1o
RAE 007, 398 000 (300 74 BAR1 652 456,000,
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18. Bank Balances and Cash

As at 30 June 2008, bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and bank balances
which carry interest at market rates ranging from 0.01% fo 10.00% (20017: 0.01% to 10.36%) per
annum,

Analysis of the bank balances and cash of the Group by curnency:

2017 §
RMEBDO0
RMB 468,190
HED Bib
United States dollars (*USDT) 17

469,067

19. Share Capital

Mumber Mowminal
of shares armverenl
HKS 000
Oirdinary shares of HKS0.1 each
Authorised:
Asat 1 July 2016, 30 june 2017 and 30 June 2018 10,000, (O, D00 1,000,000
Mumber
of shares Norminal amousi
Equivalent o
HES D00 RMETO0
Issued and fully paid:
As at 1 July 2076, 30 June 2007 and 30 June 2018 3,081,690,283 308, 165 270,603
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19, Share Capital (continued)

Share option scheme

Ashare option scheme was approved for adoption by the shareholders of the Company effiective on 22
October 2013 (the “Share Option Scheme®l. The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for
a period of ten years and the purpose of which is to provide the Company with an alternative means of
giving incentive to rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or providing benefits to (i) any
director, chief executive or employee (whether full-time or part-time) of any member of the Groug; (i)
any discrotionary ohject of 4 disceelionary trust established by any director, chief execative or
employee (whether full-time or part-timel of any member of the Group: (i) a company beneficially
owned by any director, chief exccutive or employee (whether full-time o part-timel of any member of
the Group: (ivl any consultant, professional and other adviser to any member of the Group or any
consultant, professional and other adviser proposed to be appointed to any member of the Group
fincluding any of their employees, partnees, dirsciors or executives]; and (v any associates of any
director, chief executive, or substantial shareholder of any moember of the Group and for such other
purposes as the Board may approve from fime to time, Mo share options under the Share Option
Scheme were granted, forfeited, vested or outstanding in both vears presented,

Share award scheme

On 25 January 2007, an emyployees’ share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme®) was adopted by
the Company. The Share Award Scheme is valid and effective for a period of 15 vears commencing
from 25 January 2007, Pursuant to the rules of the Share Award Scheme, the Company has set up a
trust, HHI Employess” Share Award Scheme Trast, for the purpose of administering the Share Award
Scheme and holding the awarded shares beiose they are vested,

For awarded shares granted on 25 January 2007 according to the Share Award Scheme, the awardees
shall not dispose of, nor enter info any agreement to dispose of the relevant awarded shares in the
i2-maonth period commencing on the vesting date thereol.

There were na awarded shares granted, foreited, vested or outstanding in both years presented.
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20. Company's Statement of Financial Position, and Share Premium and
Reserves

Company’s Stalement of Financial Position

2007
RME QOO0
ASSETS |
Mon-currend Assets
Irvestments in subsidiaries 2,470,059
Amount due from a subsidiary 1,435,903
3,905,962
Current Assels
Deposits and prepayments 252
Interest and other recoivables 1,652
Amounts due from subsidiaries 241,200
Bank balances and cash 468,554
711,658 &
Total Assels 4,617,620
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES .
Capital and Reserves
Share capital 270,603
Share premium and reserves 3,521,842
3,792,445
Current Liabilities
Payahles and accruals 4,746
Dividend payable -
Amounts due to subsidiaries B20.429
Total Liabilitics 825,175 |
Total Equity and Liahilities 4,617,620

Cash and cash equivalents A6B,554

Tianliang ZHANG Ji Ly
Direcior Director
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20. Company's Statement of Financial Position, and Share Premium and
Reserves (continued)

Company's Share Premium and Reserves

The Company's reserves available for distribution represent the share premium and retained prodits.
Linder the Companies Law Chapter 22 of the Cayman Bslands, the share premium of the Company is
available for paying distributions or dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions of its
Memarandum or Articles of Association and provided that immediately following the distribution of a
dividend, the Company is able to pay its debt as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. In
aciordance with the Cormpany’s Articles of Association, dividends can only be distribibed oot of the
retained profits and share premium of the Company, As al 30 June 2018, the Company’s resennes
available for distribution to its shareholders amounting to RME3S 439 749 000 (2017:
RMB4,038,585.000), comprising retained profits of RMB7 22,780,000 (2017: RMB93 3,826,000} and
share premium of RMB2,716,969,000 (2017: RMB3, 104,759,000,

Stare  Transhation Retained

premium reserve profits Total
RMBHI0 RMBOO0 RMEBDOD RMB (N}
(Mote)
Asal 1 July 2016 4,646,724 (B04,446) GEOLT 16 4,522,994
Frofit and total comprehensive
income for the year - - 775.597 775597
Dividends recognised as distrilution
during the year (Note 111 1.541,965) 287,703 (522.487)  (1.776,749)
As at 30 June 2017 '

Profit and total comprehensive
o for the year

Dividends recognised as distribution
during the year (Note 11)

As at 30 June 2018

S

Before the change in fimctonal cumency of the Company fom HED o RME during the vear ended 3 June 309, the oxchangs
dilfetences recognised in lation reserve ep 1 the diffesence befween the equity iransactions and accumiulated
earnings tramlated at (e exchange rafes a2 the transaction dates and the assets and liabilities fransbated at the closing rates al
thar el of each repodting period

The special final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2017 of RMBI0 cents (2017 for the year ended 30 fume 2016 of RAB40
conb) per share amounting o approximately RMBIOT, 066,000 (N1 7 RMBEL254,262,000) was distributed from the chane
premilum arien at the Hme befose the change in functional cusrency of the Company from HKD io RME. Accordingly, the share
peemsivm and the comesponding tramsbtion reenve had been deliited by BMELET, 7900000 (20017 RMED, 540 965,000) and
credited by BRAIERD, 724,000 (2017: RMBEINT 700, 000) respectively,
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21. Deferred Tax Liability

The amount represents thee defered tax liability associated with the undistribued carmings of the joint
virntures, The movement of deferred tax liabdlity is as follows:

RMB 000
Asat 1 July 2016 127,412
Charge to prafit or loss 37,026
Release to peofit or loss upon payment of withholding tax B, 22

As al 30 Jume 2017
Charge to profit or loss
Release to peodit or loss upon payment of withhalding ax

As at 30 Junc 2018

22. Capital Risk Management

The Group manages ils capital bo ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the refurn to owners through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy romains unchanped from that of the prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consist of equity attributabie o owners of the Company, comprisin

issued capital, share premium, retained profits and other reserves. The Directors review the capita
structure periodically, As part of this eview, the Directors consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with cach class of capital. The Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
issue of now debt or the repayment of existing debt,

The Directors monitor the wilisation of bank loans and ensures full compliance with loan covenants
during the year,

(a) Categories of financial instruments

201F
RMBON0
Financial assets i
Loans and receivables including cash and cash equivalents 470,893
Available-for-sales financial asset 4,785
475,678 §
Financial liabilities f
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 6,746 |

(b} Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Directors have overall reipnnsi!:ilin- for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk
management framework, The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and
analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls to monitor risks
and adberence o markel conditions and the Group's activities. The Group, theough (s training
and management standards and procedures, aims 1o develop a disciplined and constructive
control enviranment in which all emplovees understand their roles and obligations, The Directors
monitor and manage the financial risks relating to the operations of the Group o ensure
appropeiate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

The Group employs @ conservative strategy regarding its risk managemént and does nol engage in
trading of any financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments, for hedging or
speculative purpose.

There has been no change to the Group's exposure (o market risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures.
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23. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b} Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
(i) Foreign currency risk
The Group undertake certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies, hence
exposure o ecxchange fluctuation arise. Certain of the financial assets and financial Bahilities
of the Group are denominated in HKD or USD which are currencies other than their
respidtive functional currencies of the respective group entities. The Growp manages its
foreign currency risk by constantly monitoring the movemnent of the foreign exchange rates.

The carrying amounts of the foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary
lhahilities of the Group at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Assets Liahilitics
2017

N )
RMB'000 RMBUO0  RMBODG RM .

Lsp 7 Y = -
08 6,064 Eﬁﬁ

HKD B 908
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in respedt of foreign
CUMMBNCY EXposure.

Sensitivity analysis

The foreign currency risk of the Group and a joint venture is mainly concentrated an the
fluctuation of RMB, the functional currency of the Company, its subsidiaries and a joint
venture as at 30 June 2018, against USD and HKD. The following sensitivity analysis
includes cumrency risk relatid to USD and HKD dénominated monetany itenrs of respective
group entities and the joint venture,

5% is the sensitivilty rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates, The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjuses their transtation at the year end for a 5%
change in forcign currency rate and all other variables are held constant,

As at 30 June 2018, the Group (excluding the joint ventures) had monetary assets and
monetary liabilities denominated in HKD that s not the functional currency of the relevant
group entities (e, RMBL 1 exchange rate of RMB against HKD had strengthened/weakened
by 5%, the profit for the year attributable o owners of the Company for the current year
would increase/decrease by RMB1TS, 713, 0400,

As at 30 Junc 2007, as the carrying amounts of foreign currency denominated monetary
assets and liabilities of the Group (excluding the joint ventures) were nob significant.
Accorchngly, no sensitivity analysis is prosented.
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23. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b} Financial risk managemenl objectives and policies (continued)
(i} Foreign currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

As at 30 June 2018, a joint venture of the Group had outstanding bank Ioans and hank
balances denominated in HKD and USD that are not the functional currency of a joint
venture (i, RMBL. The forcign currency nisk associated with foreign currency bormowings
exposed by a joint venture s reflected in the share of results of joint ventures. i exchange
rate of RME against HKD and USD had been strengthenedfweakened by 5%, the profit jor
the yisar attributable o owners. of the Company for the current year would increase/decrease
by RMBA2, 667,000 (2017: RMB48,458,000),

(i) Interest rate risk
The cash flows interest rate risk of the Group relates primarily to varialde rate bank balances
with details as set out in note 18 and the vanable rate bank loans and bank balances of s
joint ventures.,

The Group is exposed 1o Fair value interest risk in relation o certain bank balances, with
details as set out in note 18 The management confinees o monitor the fair value interest
rate expasure of the Group.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis is includes only vanable financial instruments outstanding at the end
of the reporting period were outstanding for the whole year, A 100 basis point is the
seensitivity rate used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personned
and repeesints management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change ininterest rates,

As al 30 June 200 8, the Group lexcluding its foint ventures) are exposed o cash flow inerest
rate in relation to the variable rate bank balances. If interest rate had been 100 (2017: 1040)
basis points higherdower, the prafit for (he year attributable (0 owners of the Company for
the curient year would increase/decrease by RMBG,91 5,000 (2017 RMB4, 691,004,

As at 30 June 2008, the joint ventures of the Group are exposed to cash flow inferest rate
risk in relation to the variable rate bank balances and bank loans, I interest mte had been
100 (2017: 100) basis points higherlower, the profit for the year attributable to awners of
the Company for the current year would decreasefincrease by RMB44,708,000 [(2017:
RABA% 970, 0000,

(iii} Credit risk
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable 1o its dividend and other receivables and
bank balances.

AL 30 June 2018, the Group’s maximum exposure o credit nsk which will cause a financial
loss o the Group due o failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position,

The Group has significant concentration of credit risk in its dividend receivable from a joint
venture. The management is responsible to exercise the joint contral on the relevant

activities of the joint ventures with a PRC joint venture partner 1o ensure the joint ventures
maintaining favourable financial position in order to reduce such credit risk,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow thee year erded 360 fune 2008

23. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b} Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
(i1} Credit risk (continued)
In addition, the management and the respective joint ventures are responsible for monitoring
the procedures to ensune that follow-up actions ane taken o ecover overdue defits, in order
to minimise other credit risks, Tho management is also responsible for reviewing the
recoverable amount of each individual debt at the end of the reparting period to cnsune that
adequate impairment are made for irrecoverable amounts, In this regard, the Directors
consider that the Group®s credil risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risks of the Group on liguid funds are limited because the counterpartios ane
banks with good reputation.

Other than the above, the Group has no ofher significant concentration of credit risk,

(iv) Liguidity risk

The Group's freasury activities ane centralised fo achieve better risk control andd minimise
thi cost of funds. Cash is geneally placed in bank deposits mostly denominated in RMB.
The management aims to maintain a balance between continuity of adequate funding and
the flexibility through the use of bank and other borrowings, The Group's liquidity and
financing requirements are reviewed regulardy to mitigate the effects of lucivations in cash
fowrs, The mansgement will consider new financing while maintaining appropriale gearing
ratio.

The carrying amounts of the financial liabilites represent the undiscounted cash flows that
the Group is required 1o pay and are repayvable on demand, All the financial liabilities are
non-inferest bearing,

{c) Fair value measurement of financial instruments
The fair values of financial assels and financial liabilities al amortised cost ane determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing maodels based oa discounted cash flow analysis,
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of the financial assets and financial labilities

recognised al amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair
walines,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow the year eooed 30 jume 2018

24, Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries

The fallowing list contains the particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 30 June 2017 and 30
June 20018 which principally affect the results, assets or ahilities of the Group as the Directors are of
the opinion that a full list of all the subsidiaries would be of excessive length, None of the subsidiaries
hadl iscued any debt securities during the year or at the end of the year,

Atteibutable  Propartian of
cquily inferest  yoling power

Plice of Hssued and el by beld by
e of subvidiary imcorporation fully pard share ~ the Company ~ the Coopany Principal activity
Kiagnice (V) Limited Buitsh Virgin Isands~ Oinary shares 7% 100 Investment holding
[Femerhy knows s L8820 000
Kingpice Limited)
Hopewell China Devedoprrent  Hong Kong Chefirary shases  97.5% of issund 100% Imesiment in
(Suptshigtway] Limited HESZ  ondisary shans ey projel
Nem-iding
deferied shanes
HKM
Hopewell Cuangzhou-Zhuhsi  Hong Kong Ofimary shaees  100% of isued 100% bvestment i
Supieehighway Developmest HKS2  ordisary shares ey penjict
Limited Nom-veing
deferred shaves
HEKS2
HHI Fingege: Limited Hong Kong Qedinary share HKS1 100% 100% Loan finance

Except HHI Finance Limited, all the above subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.
25. Operating Leases

The Group as lessee

2017 |
RMBO00 |

Mimirmum lease payments paid under operating lease
ior premises during the year 1,261

Al the end of the reporting period, the Group has commilments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of premises which fall due as fallows:

Within one year

As al 30 June 2008, leases were negotiated for a lease term of one year with fixed rentals.

As at 30 Jume 2017, the Group does not have any negotiated lease agreement,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow the year et JEF farwr 200007

26. Capital Commitments

As at 30 June 2017 and 30 Junc 2018, the Group has no outstanding capital commitment.

27. Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from Financing Activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash
Mowws weere, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows
as cash flows from financing activitios.

Divicdend

payable

RMBTOMNY

Asat 1 July 20017 =
Financing cash flows (673, B0f)
Dhvidend declarcd 1,033,456
Exchange difference 11,126
As at 30 June 2018 370,956

28. Related Party Transactions

Amounts due to and from related partios are disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial
pasition and relevant notes, During the period from 1 July 2007 to 3 April 2018, of which HHL ceased
to be the ultimate holding company of the Company on 4 April 2008, the Group paid rentals, air-
conditioning, management fee and car parking charges (o fellow subsidiarics of HHL amounting to
RMBT,1071,000 (2017; RMBI,414,000).

Compensalion of key managemenl personnel
The remuneration of key management personnel who ane all Directors is disclosed in note 10,

29, Guarantee

As at 30 June 2018, the unutilised uncommitted banking facilities of the Company’s whaolly-owned
subsidiary of RMB253,593,000 (2017: RMB434,028,000) are guaranteed by the Company. The
Company is able to control the utilisation of the facifitics.

TZ0  HOPIWELL HIGHWAY INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITHD  ANSUAL BEPORT 2097710
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fo e pear el 30 e 2018

30. Contingent Liability

During the year endod 30 June 2008, a subsidiary of the Company recovered the registered capital of
HKST02,000,000 (equivalent to RMB471,000,000) previously injected to the G5 Superhighway V.
Accarding to the Law of the PRC on Chinese-foreign Contractual Joint Venture, in relation 1o the early
repayment of registered capital to the foreign joint venture partoer by the G5 Superhighway 1V before
the expiry of the operation period, the subsidiary of the Company, as the foreign joint venture partner,
i= required (o undertake the financial obligations of the GS Superhighway |¥ to the extent of
HKS702,000,000 when the G5 Superhighway |V fails to mect its financial obligations during the joint
venture operation penod,

31. Approval of Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements on page 79 to 121 were approved and authorised for issue by
the Board on 27 August 2018,
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Appendix — Consolidated Financial Information
(Prepared Under Proportionate Consolidation Method)

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

Far year ended 30 fune 2018
(FOR INFORMATION PURPOSE OMNLYY
2017
RMB 00
Toll revenue 2,159.263
Revenue on constructinn 63,605
Turnover 2,222,868
Other income and other expense (Note i) 76,801
Construction costs (63,605}
Provision for resurlacing charges 36,8200
Toll expressway operation expenses (253.224)
General and administrative expenses (106,011)
Depreciation and amortisation charges 670,841}
Finance costs (Nofe i) (264,67 3)
Profit before tax 4,495
INCOME X Sxpense (272,902)
Profil for the year 631,593
Profit for the year attributable 1o
Chweners of the Company 622,671

Non-controlling interests

8,922

631,593

ol

W OTHER INCOME AND OTHER EXPEMSE

20mF
AR TN

Irtefest Income from bank deposits.

Impstec] i ndemest ircimme an inberest-lree
registened capita] cantributions mde by
Ik Gorowap 10 a foint veniute

Met exchange lossligaln

Rental Income

(hers

16,277

22,549

(24,453)

16,941
25487

7680

{iiy  FINANCE COSTS

2007

RAE 00

Interest sn hank koans 241,414
Impainel nterest oa:

Imtwrest-froer reghiimmed cagital conmbiations

maihe by a jring veniune panees 22,549

by 550

264,513

Cihwer financial expersis 160

264,673

122 HOPIWELL HIGHWAY INFRASTRIGCTURE LIMITED  ANSNUAL BEPORT 2957710
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Appendix — Consolidated Financial Information
(Prepared Under Proportionate Consolidation Method)

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2018
(FOR INFORMATION PLIRPOSE ONLY)

2017
BB MK
ASSETS
Mon-current Assels
Property and equipment 432,935
Concession intangible assets 11,100,501
Balance with a joint venlue 193,372
Invesiment 4,785
11,922,593 BN 13,746,347
Current Assets
Inventories 1115
Deposits and prepayments 1,611
Interest and ather receivables 35,966
Other receivable from a joint venture -
Pledged bank balances and deposits of
joint ventures 434,191
Bank balances and cash
~ The Group 469,067
~ |oint ventures 431
948,381
Total Assets 12,880,974

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and Reserves

Share capital 270,603
Share premium and reserves 5,255,732
Equity atiributable o owners of

the Company 5,526,335
Non-controlling inferests 30,826
Total Equity 5,557,161
Mon-current Liabilities
Bank and ather Inans of joint ventures 5,834,763
Balance with a joint venture parner 393,322
Resurfacing obligations 179,787
Deferred tax liabilities 248,998
Other non-current liabilities 39,409

6,696,279 4 774114

Current Liabilities
Provision, other payables, accruals and

deposits received 187,056
Dividend payable =
Bank loans of joint ventures 171,271
Other interest payable 6,523
Tax liahilities 62,184 ;

627,534 L 72919

Total Liabilities 7,323,113 3 |
Total Equily and Liabifities 12,880,974 =1 ) 14,838,882
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Hopewell Highway Infrastructure Limited

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hopewell Highway Infrastructure Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 79 to 121, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 30 June 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs"). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter

Interests in joint ventures (“JVs”) and share of results
of JVs — Amortisation of concession intangible assets
of the JVs

We identified the amortisation of concession intangible
assets of the JVs as a key audit matter because
significant judgements are required in determining the
estimation of future traffic volume which has impact on
the carrying value of the concession intangible assets
of the JVs as at year end and the amortisation charges
for the current and future years. As set out in note 14
to the consolidated financial statements, the two JVs
of the Group are engaged in the development,
operation and management of expressways under
service concession agreements with the right to collect
tolls for operating two expressways in Guangdong
Province of the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"), one of which runs between Shenzhen and
Guangzhou and the other one links Guangzhou,
Zhongshan and Zhuhai with the toll collection periods
ranging from 25 years to 30 years. The Group has
accounted for its interests in these JVs using the
equity method of accounting.

As set out in note 4(i) to the consolidated financial
statements, the interests in JVs as at 30 June 2018
amounted to RMB4,851,836,000 and the share of
results of JVs for the year then ended amounted to
RMB724,433,000. Included in the share of results of
JVs, there was an amortisation of concession
intangible assets of the JVs shared by the Group
amounting to RMB618,494,000 for the year ended 30
June 2018 which was calculated based on units-of-
usage basis, i.e. the ratio of actual traffic volume of the
underlying toll expressways for a particular period over
the total expected traffic volume of the underlying toll
expressways over the remaining concession period of
the service concession agreements.

The total expected traffic volume over the remaining
concession period was estimated by the management
with reference to a report prepared by a third party
traffic consultant in a prior year taken into
consideration of various factors such as the annual
growth rate of the traffic volume, the actual traffic
volume in the recent periods, the change of the
transportation network of the region and government
policies relating to the toll expressway operation in the
PRC.

How our audit addressed the key audit

matter

Our procedures in relation to the
amortisation of concession intangible assets
of the two JVs included:

Evaluating the appropriateness of the
accounting policy adopted and whether
such accounting policy adopted reflects
the consumption pattern of the
concession intangible assets and
benchmarking with other companies in
the same industry;

Undertaking a detailed analysis on the
significant judgements and estimates
used in management’s estimation as
mentioned below; and

Comparing the expected traffic volume
estimated by the management in the
past against the actual traffic volume in
previous years and the historical trend
of traffic volume, and then obtaining
reasons for any variances, as well as
evaluating the appropriateness, key
basis and assumptions, including the
annual growth rate of the traffic volume,
the change of the transportation
network of the region and government
policies relating to the toll expressway
operation in the PRC.

205/209

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO

O000oO00ooooooO000O00o0o00bDboO00noOO(Ees933)

Key audit matter
Interests in joint ventures (“JVs”) and share of results
of JVs — Resurfacing obligations of the JVs

We identified the resurfacing obligation of the JVs as a
key audit matter due to the management’s judgement
involved in determining the amount of provision by
discounted cash flow method which is based on the
number of major resurfacing works to be undertaken
over the concession periods under the service
concession agreements and the expected costs to be
incurred for each event and then discounted to the
present value based on a pre-tax discount rate which
could in turn affect the carrying amount of interests in
joint ventures as at 30 June 2018 and share of results
of joint ventures for the year ended under the equity
method of accounting for the reason stated in the
above key audit matter.

As disclosed in note 4(ii) to the consolidated financial
statements, the JVs of the Group have contractual
obligations under the contractual service concession
arrangements to maintain the toll expressways to a
specified level of serviceability over the respective
concession periods. These obligations to maintain or
restore the toll expressways, except for upgrade
services, are to be recognised as resurfacing
obligations in the financial statements of the JVs.

As further disclosed in note 4(ii) to the consolidated
financial statements, the interests in JVs as at 30 June
2018 amounted to RMB4,851,836,000 and share of
results of JVs for the year then ended amounted to
RMB724,433,000. Included in the interests in JVs,
there was a provision of resurfacing obligations of the
JVs shared by the Group amounting to
RMB207,590,000 as at 30 June 2018.

The expected costs for maintenance and resurfacing
and the timing of such event to take place involve
estimates made by the management of the Group,
which were taken into consideration of the resurfacing
plans of the JVs, historical costs incurred for similar
activities and the latest quotations from the service
provider. These expected costs were then discounted
to the present value based on a discount rate
determined by the management of the Group that
reflected the time value of the money and the risk
specific to the obligation.

How our audit addressed the key audit

matter

Our procedures in relation to evaluate the
resurfacing obligations of the JV included:

Evaluating the appropriateness of the
methodology, key bases and
assumptions made by management in
estimating the obligations;

Assessing the reasonableness of the
expected costs of the resurfacing works
and the number of major resurfacing
works to be undertaken over the
remaining concession period based on
the technical report prepared by the
engineering department of the JVs and
the actual costs incurred for resurfacing
works in recent periods;

Evaluating the appropriateness of the
discount rate and the timing for
discounting used by the management
with reference to the borrowing rate of
the JVs; and

Evaluating the projected traffic volume
projection based on procedures
performed in the key audit matter
related to the amortisation on
concession intangible assets of the JVs
as mentioned above which is used for
determining the amount of resurfacing
expense to be charged to profit or loss
in the respective reporting period.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor
's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the

Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

207/209



EDINETOO OO
000000000000000000000000000000(E05933)
ooooood
As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group'’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor's report is Hung Suk Fan.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
27 August 2018
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